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July 3, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Brain Injury
Association of New Hampshire (VC#156086). Concord. NH to continue raising awareness of the
connection between brain injury and substance use disorder, by exercising a contract renewal
option with no change to the price limitation of $200,000 and extending the completion date from
June 30, 2024 to June 30, 2025, effective retroactive to July 1. 2024 upon Governor and Council
approval.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 20,2022, Item #20,
and as amended on February 22,2023, item #5B.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because the Department was not able to present this action
to Governor and Executive Council before the contract expiration date due to the Department
needing more time to assess the need for extending the contract. Opportunities for the Contractor
to continue engaging schools and other youth-serving organizations to provide substance use
prevention messaging to students during the 2024-2025 school year have been identified. This
request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments tp agreements originally
approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. The Contractor is the only professional
association focused on brain injury in New Hampshire.

The purpose of this request is to extend the contract completion date, at no additional
cost, to allow the Contractor to continue to raise awareness of and to provide education on the
connection between brain injury and substance use disorders to persons who have sustained or
are in danger of sustaining brain injuries related to their substance use, their families and
caregivers, medical and other healthcare providers, by utilizing existing State Fiscal Year 2024
funding that will be carried forward to State Fiscal Year 2025

The Contractor has successfully raised awareness and provided educational opportunities
that included facilitating speaker's bureaus: offering presentations; distributing printed materials
focused on brain injury and substance use disorders: and maintaining a dedicated webpage on
brain injury and substance use disorders on the Contractors' website. The Contractor will
continue these activities as well as engage additional audiences, in particular youth, through
presentations and distribution of materials at conferences, partnering with public information
organizations to develop educational products adapted to multiple audiences, and engaging
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schools to increase substance use prevention messaging tostudefnts. This extension will
allow the Contractor adequate time to adapt materials and educateihe target audience over the
course of the upcoming school year.

The Department will continue monitoring services through regularly scheduled meetings
and the review of quarterly reports to ensure the delivery of quality-services.

As referenced in in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Govemor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for the
one (1) year remaining.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will have
limited opportunities to provide educational opportunities about the connections between brain
injury and substance use disorders.

Area served: Statewide.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Departmenl ofHtollhond Human Services'Mission is to Join communities and families
in providing opporlunilies for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Brain Injury and Substance Use Disorder Support contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Brain
Injury Association of New Hampshire ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Coritract") approved by the Governor and Executive Couricil
on April 20, 2022, (Item 20), as amended on February 22, 2023 (Item #5B), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:'

June 30, 2025

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire A-S-1.3

SS-2022-BDAS-04-BRA1N-01-A02 Page 1 of 3
v7.12.23

Contractor Initials

7/2/2024'
Date

•OS
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1, 2024, upon Governor and
Council approval..

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/2/2024

Date

^OoeuSlgntd by:

lOUjA S. fwt

Title: Director

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire

7/2/2024

Date

-DocuSlgiMd by:

Jame^^'*^ ''
Title: Associate Executive Director

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire A-S-1.3

SS-2022-8DAS-04-BRAIN-01-A02 Page 2 of 3
V. 7.12,23
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF •nffiATTORNEY GENERAL

'OccuSlgrnd by:

7/3/2024

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Brain Injury Associalion of New Hampshire A-S-1.3

SS-2022-BDAS-04-BRAIN-01-A02 Page 3 of 3
V. 7.12.23
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTiFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrelao' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION

OF NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

September 15. 1983. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and

is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 45571

Certificate Number: 0006729596

ft

Urn

'W

(15

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of July A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar)' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

, hereby certify that
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporatlon/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretarv/Officerof A^'t^ .
(Corporation/LLC Na?^) j ^

2. The following Is a tnjei copy of a vo^takeriafa meeting of th^bard of Directbrs/sharehbldersi duly called and
held on .^TuLj / ' 2Qc?Y. at which a quorun) of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED; That 11 fOsfSriC . ^ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Cor^tract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf /3&VC. <0 Alf^to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of ̂or^ration/1^)

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and ail
documents, agreements and other instrurhentSi and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repeated and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it Is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: Ju/,/ 2, 2'02'-l
Y  Signature of Elected Officer

Name: 1^0 uS5ecuc(
Title: \/^

Rev: 03/24/20
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^COKD- certificate OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

7/1/2024 :

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATiON is WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER •

Davis & Towie Morrlll & Everett, Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

rSo.Ext). (603) 225-6611 r^.No);(603) 225-7935

INSURER/Si AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICF

INSURER A PhlladelDhia Insurance ComDanv 23850

INSURED

Brain Injury Association of NH & Wings of Hope Foundation
52 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301-4334

INSURER B Liberty Mutual Insurance Company 23043

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INSR
ITR TYPE OF INSURANCE

ADOL
iNSn

SUBR
wvn POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
fMM/nn/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
fMMmnfYYYYI LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

)E OCCUR PHPK2601694 11/1/2023 11/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

j CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED . s  100,000

MED EXP (Any one oerson)
s  5,000

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY
j  1,000,000

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 15^ 1 |l0C
OTHER • •

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG
J  2,000,000

A AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

PHPK2601694 11/1/2023 11/1/2024

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT j  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULED
n-os

BODILY INJURY (Per beraon) s
OVYNED
AUTOS ONLY

ONLY

SC
Al BODILY INJURY (Per ecddentl s

X X
HtOPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accidenii s

5

A X UMBRELLA LLAB

EXCESS LLAB

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE PHUB881322 11/1/2023 11/1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  2,000,000

AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

OED X RETENTIONS 10,000
B WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY • Y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTTVE 1 1

If yee, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Nf A
•
XW058144225 11/1/2023 11/1/2024

y PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
j  500,000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
j  500,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
j  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddltJonfl R«m«rks Schedule, mey be aneehed If more tpaee It required)
Workers Compensation 3A States: NH CT

The Certificate Holder is Included as Addtlonal Insured with respect to the General Liability and Umbrella Liablttly coverage when required by written contract.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) ©1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
;  r ' . . ( • ■
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Our Mission: To create a better future througfi brain injury
prevention, education, advocacy, and support.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF

NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2022 AND 2021
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DAVID A. KREED
Certified Public Accountant

36 North Street

. Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
Tel: (603) 625-4792 Fax: (603) 624-5993

dkreedcpa@comcast.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board'of Directors

Brain Injury Association of NewHampshire
Concord, New Hampshire

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Brain Injury Association of
New Hampshire (a nonprofit organization) and Affiliates, which.comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire and Affiliates as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our. audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Brain Injuiy Association of New Hampshire and Affiliates ̂ d to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, rhanagement is required to evaluate whether there are conditions'
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about their ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
st^dards wijl always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
■misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgeiy, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by. a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we;

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those ri sks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in* the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Brain lnjur>' Association of New Hampshire and Affiliates'
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expres.sed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
fi nancial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire and Affiliates'
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

David A. Kreed
Certified Public Accountant
August 1(5, 2023
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AUD 2021

ASSETS 2022 2021

See Accompanying Notes And Independent Auditor's Report.

3

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents . $ 1,861,605 $ 1,703,373
Funds Held for Other Entities • 73,744 62,291
Grants and Contracts Receivable 539,399 372,449
Prepaid Expenses 12,274 . i,740

Total Current Assets 2,487,022 2,139,853

Property and Equipment at Cost, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 817.954 821,758

TotalAssets ^ $ 3,304,976 $2,961,611

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities

Current Liabilities ^
Accounts Payable ■ $ 28,1.96 $ 8,822
Accrued Expenses 6,326 150,000
Funds Managed for Other Entities 73,744 62,291
Bingo Carryover Prizes 0 753

Current Maturity of Long-Term Debt 40,049 35,966

Total Current Liabilities 148,315 257,832

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current .Maturity 55,113 76,128

Other Liabilities .

PPP Loan - SBA/Bank q_ 326,246

Total Liabilities 203.428 660,206

NET ASSETS

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 3,101,548 2,301,405

Total Net Assets 3,101,548 , 2.301,405

ToUl Liabilities and Net Assets $ 3,304,976 $ 2,961,611
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

REVENUE AND SUPPORT

Program Services Income
Grants

Contributions

Fund Raising
PPP Loan Forgiveness
Memberships/Sponsorships
Registration Fees
Other Revenue

Interest Income

Special Events - Bingo

Total Revenue and Support

2022 2021

$ 2.740.404

547,219

33,052

155,348
326,246

6,220

25,330

21,091

320

1,265.893

5.121.123

$ 2.462.794

80,099

28,451

117,320
311,415

12,011

15,298

20,669

837

1,455,304

4,504.198

EXPENSES

Program Services

Management and General
Fund Raising
Special Events - Bingo

Total Expenses

2,621,382

442,088

30,755

1,226,755

4,320,980

2,198,588

379,701

34,633

1,438,348

4,051,270

Change In Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 800,143

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions at Beginning of Year 2,301,405

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions at End of Year $ 3.101,548

452,928

1,848,477

$ 2,301,405

See Accompanying Notes And Independent Auditor's Report.

4
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Program Management Fund Total

Services and General Raising 2022

Salaries and Wages $ 1.734,560 $  289,431 $ 0 $ 2,023,991
Employee Benefits 257,252 42,925 0 300,177
PayrollTaxes .129,214 21,561 0 150,775
Rent Expense , 0 0 7,050 7,050
Utilities 9,695 2,424 0 12,119
Repairs and Maintenance 51,988 12,997 375 65,360
Travel Expense 50,253 7", 179 . 221 57,653
Telephone ' 23,935 5,984 0 29,919
Office Expense and Postage 28,720 7,180 1,393 37,293
Printing and Design 18,444 2,635 2,642 23,721

Conferences and Training 30,606 3,400 20 34,026
Dues and Subscriptions 24,482 2,720 180 27,382
Insurance 19,330 2,761 0 22,091
Professional Fees 52,591 7,513 - 0 -  60,104
Marketing and Advertising 5.710 0 0 5,710

Special Events 0 0 450 450

Donation's 0 16,408 168 16,576

Contract Sen/ices 155,662 0 18,208 173,870

Service Fees 0 8,737 48 8,785

Real Estate Taxes 3,942 986 0 4,928

Interest Expense 0 998 0 996

Total Before Depreciation 2,596,384 435,839 30,755 3,062,978

Depreciation 24,998 6,249 0 31,247

Total Functional Expenses - $ 2,621,382 $ . 442,088 $ 30,755 $  3,094,225

See Accompanying Notes And Independent Auditor's Report.

5
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Program Management. . Fund Total

Services and General Raising 2021

Salaries and Wages $ 1.359,194- : $ 226,797 $ ■ 0 $  1,585,991
Employee Benefits 348.623 58,172 0 406,795
Payroll Taxes 99,423 16,590 0 116,013
Rent Expense 0 0 2,500 2,500
Utilities 6,751 1,688 0 8,439
Repairs and Maintenance 43,287 10,821 .  0 54,108
Travel Expense 22,494 3,213 . 0 25,707
Telephone 19,674 4,919 0 24,593
Office Expense and Postage 28,108 7,027. 1,100 36,235
Printing and Design 21,421 3,060 2,676 27,157

Conferences and Training 11,054 1,228 20 12,302

Dues and Subscriptions 22,688 2,521 100 25,309

Insurance 15,673 2,239 0 17,912

Professional Fees 54,739 7,820 0 62,559

Marketing and Advertising 2,001 0 5,000 7,001

Special Events 1  0 0 3,600 3,600

Donations 0 17,159 0 17,159

Contract Services, 123,440 .  0 19,637 143,077

Service Fees 0 5,960 0 5,960

Interest Expense - 0 5,483 0 5,483

Total Before Depreciation 2,178,570 374,697 34,633 2,587,900

Depreciation 20,018 . 5,004 , 0 25,022

Total Functional Experises $ 2,198,588 $  379,701 $ 34,633 $ 2,612,922

See Accompanying Notes And Independent Auditor's Report.

6
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31„2Q22 AND 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2022 2021

Change in Net Assets $  800,143 ' $ 452,928

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Depreciation 31,247 25,022

(Increase) Decrease in:
Grants and Contracts Receivable

Prepaid Expenses
(166,950)
(10,534)

3,877

3,510

Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Funds Managed for Other Entities
Deferred Revenue

Bingo Carryover Prizes

19,374

(143,674)
11,453

0

(753)

1,850

75,000

.9,642

(650)

(40.665)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 540.306 530,514

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property and Equipment (27,443) (303,820)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (27,443) (303,820)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan Proceeds

PPP Loan Proceeds

Loan Repayments
PPP Loan Forgiveness

19,341

0

(36,273)
(326,246)

0

326,246

(38,857)

(311,415)

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED). BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (343,178) (24,026)

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 169,685 202,668.

BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,765,664 1.562,996

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1,935,349 $ 1,765,664

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES

Interest Paid $  998 S  2,217

See Accompanying Notes And Independent Auditor's Report.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNI FICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

The Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire is a nonprofit organization located in Concord,
New Hampshire. The mission of the Association is to promote awareness, understanding, and
prevention of brain injuiy through education, advocacy, research, and community support services
that result in reduced incidents and improved outcomes of children and adults with brain injuries.

■ Principles of Consolidation -

The consolidated financial statements include the Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire and
the New Hampshire Wings of Hope Foundation, collectively referred to as "the Organization". All
significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. The New Hampshire
Wings of Hope Foundation is also a nonprofit organization, raising" funds to promote various
educational and charitable endeavors. The Association has both an economic interest and control of
its fund raising activities and also shares its rnanagement team and governing board.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements, have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted.in the United Slates of Arherica.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are presented in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting'Standards Codification (ASC) 958, in which the Organization is required to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets: Net Assets without Donor Restrictions and Net Assets with Donor Restrictions. Under the

provisions of the pronouncement, net assets, revenues, gains and losses arc classified based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization
and changes therein are classified as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
and may be expended for any purpose in perfonhing the primary objectives of the Organization.
The Organization's board may .designate assets without restrictions for specific operational purposes
fi-om time to time.

( Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and grantors,
Some donor restrictions are tcmporaiy in nature; those restrictions will be met by the Organization
or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-8801-ABA9AAF3048E

BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income taxes

The Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire and the New Hampshire Wings of Hope
Foundation are exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue
Code, and classified by the Internal Revenue Service ̂  other than a private foundation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments
available for current use, with an initial maturity of three months or less, to be cash equivalents.
Funds were placed with a brokerage firm as of December 31, 2022 for the purchase of two
certificates of deposit in January 2023, each with a twelve-month term and interest rate of 4.600%.

Grants and Contracts" Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts
are offset against the corresponding revenue account.

Property and Eouipment

Donations of property and equiprheht are recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value.
Such donations are reported as unrestricted contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated
asset to a specific purpose. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at cost. The
Organization capitalizes property and equipment valued over $ .1,000. Expenditures for major
renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are capitalized.
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is
computed using the siraightrline method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which
range from five to forty years.

Advertising Costs

The Organization generally expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Marketing and
advertising expense in total was $.5,710 and $ 7,001 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021 respectively.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2022 AND 2021

NOTE A-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Org^ization currently maintains several cash accounts at two area financial institutions. The-
accounts held at these financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) up to $ 250,000 per depositor. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were uninsured
cash balances of $ 1,242,128 and $ 1,332,100 respectively. Management believes that the potential
credit risk of having bank deposits in excess of FDIC limits is not significant, with no losses
experienced in any of these accounts.

Revenue and Supoort

All contributions and grants are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the
donor for specific purposes are reported as net assets -with donor restrictions. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statement of acti vities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed Services

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services. The Organization
generally pays for services requiring specific expertise. Many individuals volunteer their time,
assisting with administration and other specific projects, but these services did not meet the criteria
for recognition as contributed services.

NOTE B - INCOME TAXES

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to
evaluate tax positions taken by. the organization, including entities exempt from income taxes.
Management has evaluated the tax positions taken and concluded that the Organization does not
have any significant unrelated business income and has taken no uncertain tax positions that require
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has
been included in these financial statements.

NOTE C - TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY

The Organization maintains a tax deferred annuity plan under Internal Revenue Code Section
403(b). Eligible employees are allowed to .contribute to this plan. The Organization contributed
$ 128,636 and $ 249,891 to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 respectively.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

The following is a summary of properly and equipment at December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021

Land $  77,989 $  72,239
Buildings and Improvements 738.249 735,897
Furniture and Fixtures 15,905 15,905
Equipment 78,762 76,992
Computer Software 110.000 110.000

Total Property and Equipment 1,020,905 1,011,033

Less: Accumulated Depreciation a02.95n 0 89.2751

Net Property and. Equipment S  ?17,?54 $ m.m

NOTE E - FISCAL STEWARDSHIP

The Brain Injur>' Association of New Hampshire has assumed fiscal stewardship for the annual
Caregivers Conference presented by the Coalition for Caring, which represents several nonprofit
organizations throughout New Hampshire: The Association acts as the fiscal agent for the
conference, receiving and disbursing funds on their behalf. The Association has also assumed fiscal
stewardship for certain clients receiving assistance from the Social Security Administration. As their
fiscal representative, the Association manages these funds for the participating clients, to include
deposits and bill payments.

The cash balances and corresponding liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are $ 73,744 and
$ 62,291 respectively and are included in the statements of financial position and cash flows.

NOTE F - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Organization estimates that the fair value of all financial instruments at December 31, 2022 and
2021, such as cash and cash equivalents, grants and contracts receivable, and loans payable, none of
wliicli is held for trading puiposes, does not differ materially from the aggregate carrying values of
said financial instruments recorded in the accompanying statements of financial position, due to the
short maturities of those instruments. Where applicable, the estimated fair value amounts are
determined by the Organization, using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2022 AND 2021

NOTE G - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OFFINANCIAL ASSETS

The Organization's financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial position
date for general expenditures are as follows:

2022 2021

Cash and Cash Equivalents. $'1,861,605 $ .1,703,373
Funds Held for Other Eritities 73,744 62,291
Grants and Contracts Receivable ■ 539.399 372.449

Financial Assets at Year-End ■ 2,474,74.8 2,138,113

Less: Assets Unavailable for General

Expenditures within One Year, Due to:

Current Liabilities. (75,809) (195,541)
Fiscal Stewardship (73.7441 (62.2911

Financial Assets Available to Meet

Cash Needs for General Expenditures
within One Year. $ 2.325.195 ■ $ 1.880.281

NOTE H - BINGO ACTIVITIES

Under a license from the State of New Hampshire, the Org^ization ran weekly bingo games as a
fund raising activity under a lease agreement to rent a hall in Hudson, New Hampshire. Rent paid to
the lessor for each gaming date shall not exceed, the. rates as permitted by the New Hampshire Pari-
Mutuel Commission. During the term, the daily rental shall be $ 3.50 per person for the first 366
persons, and $. 2.50 per person for each additional person. Because of the statutory bingo exclusion
as defined in IRS Publication 3079, Tax-Exempt Organizations' and Gaming, an exempt organi^tion
may conduct games meeting the exclusion to raise funds, and the activity will not generate unrelated
business income subject to taxation. Effective December 31, 2022, the Organization decided to
perm^ently suspend its participation in biiigo activities for fund raising purposes.

NOTE I - NOTES PAYABLE

The Organization executed a promissory note with the New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority (NHHEFA), dated December 30, 2019, in the principal amount of $ 180,000,
with a five year term scheduled for maturity on January 5, 2025, with fifly-nine consecutive monthly
payments of $ 3,076.87 for principal and interest, commencing onlFebruary 5, 2020, and one final
payment of $ 3,110.98 at maturity, at an annual interest rate of 1.00%, and is collateralized by.
certain real estate located at 52 Pleasant Street in Concord, New Hampshire. The interest expense
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE I - NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 $ 956 and $ 1,304 respectively. The
outstanding principal balances as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were $ 76,128 and $ 112,094
respectively.

The Organization entered into an equipment lease agreement with a finance company in November
2022 for a Sharp copier. The term of the lease is for sixty months, with a monthly lease payment of
$ 339.00, and an imputed interest rate of approximately 2.00%. The interest expense for the year
ended December 31, 2022 was $ 32. The outstanding principal balance as of December 31, 2022
was $ 19,034.

The following is a schedule of future maturities on long-term debt;

Years ending December 31,

2023 $  40,049
2024 40,489
2025 6,981

2026 3,951
2027 3.692

Total $  95,162

NOTE J - PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM (PPP) LOANS

The Organization executed a promissory note with a bank, dated'April 20, 2020, in the principal
amount of $ 307,925, ̂  part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act's
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), sponsored by the Small Business Administration (SBA). The
Organization applied to the lender for full forgiveness of tlie loan arid in June 2021, the loan was
forgiven by the SBA and, in "turn, the entire principal amount plus accrued interest of $ 3,490,
totaling $ 311,415, was.remitted to the lender. The Organization reclassified the liability, considered
to be a refundable advance, as grant revenue in the prior period.

The Organization executed a promissory note with a bank, dated February 9, 2021, in the principal
amount of $322,980, as part of the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and
Venues Act (Economic Aid Act), sponsored by the Small Business Administration (SBA). The
Organization applied to the lender for full forgiveness of the loan and in February 2022, the loan was
forgiven by the SBA and, in turn, the entire principal amount plus accrued interest of $ 3,266,
totaling $ 326,246, was remitted to the lender. The Organization reclassified the liability, considered
to be a refiiridable advance, as grant revenue in the current period.
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BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE AND AFFILIATES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

NOTE K- RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which amends the previous accounting standards for
revenue recognition. This standard establishes principles for recognizing revenue upon the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers based on the expected consideration to be received.
Contributions ̂ d investment income are not impacted by this new standard. This pronouncement is
effective for all periods beginning after December 15, 2019 under the modified prospective method.
The adoption of ASU 2014-09 does not materially impact the accompanying financial statements or
the recognition of revenue therein.

In June 2018, FASB issued ASU 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made (Topic 958), which clarifies the criteria for
evaluating whether a transaction should be accounted for as a contribution or an exchange
transaction and whether a contribution is considered conditional or uncondition^. This

■ pronouncement is effective for all periods beginning after December 15, 2019 under the modified
prospective method. The adoption of ASU 2018-08 does not materially impact the accompanying
financial statements or the recognition of contributions therein.

NOTE L-PERSONNEL

The Executive Director has an employment contract with the Organization and its board of directors.
Additionally, it is duly noted that the Executive Director has accumulated a balance of 194.7 days of
paid time off (unused sick and "vacation time), as of December 31, 2022, earned Irom the period of
September 30, 1992 through December 31, 2001. The Organization has not deterrnined nor accrued
an amount for the cumulative paid time off earned by the Executive Director and other eligible
employees.

NOTE M - COVlD-19 GOrNG CONCERN

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak of the novel
coronavirus (C0VrD-.19) a global pandemic. As a result, uncertainties have arisen which are likely
to negatively impact net income (increase in net assets). Other financial impacts could occur, though
such financial impacts are unknown and not quantified at this time.

NOTE N - EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through August 16, 2023, the date which the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire
2024-2025 OFFICERS/EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

PRESIDENT;

Jonathan Lichtensiein, Psy.D.. MBA

VICE-PRESIDENT:

Heather Rousseau

' OrRECTORS

: TERM ENDING 2025
I Nicola Beauregard, PT, OPT, MSHA
I Alana Cullen. BA, QBIAP

Philip Girard

TREASURER;

Garry Sherry

SECRETARY:

Tricia Desrocher, PT, MS, CSRS

FAMILY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE:

Jcannine Romeo

Diane Schreck

SURVIVOR COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE:

Paul Van Blarigan

PROFESSIONAL/PROVIDER COUNCIL

REPRESENTATIVE:

Eldon Munson, Jr.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR;

Steven D. Wade

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT:

Robin Kenney, EdD

TERM ENDING 2Q26

Patricia Ciarfella

Kyla Constant •
Tiffany Cro.wcll, RNBC
Gina England, MA, CC-SLP
Holly Haines
Philip Viar

TERM ENDING 2027

Bob Guida

Mikal Payne
Lorene Reagan •
Jonathan Routhier

EX OFFICIO

Jeremiah Donovan, MBA, CBIS

Josh Gehling, M.Ed
Michael Palmieri, President/CEO
John Richards, MSW

Revised; June 2024
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Krystal Chase

Education

Master of Social Work | September 2011-May 2014 | University of New Hampshire -
Manchester, NH

•  Major: Social Work

•, Related coursework: Human Behavior and the Social Environment, Race,

Culture & Oppression, Social Welfare Policy, Child Welfare Policy,
Assessment of Addictions, Treatment of Addictions, Statistics, Program .
Evaluation .

Bachelor of Science | Seiptember 2006-May 2009 | Suffolk University - Boston, MA

•  Major: Psychology

•  Related coursework: Developmental Psychopathology, Abnormal Psychology,
Cognitive Neuroscience, Industrial-Organizational Psychology, Ethics, Sensation &
Perception, Child Development

High School Diploma | August 2001-June 2005 ] Pinkerton Academy - Derry, NH

Certifications and Licenses

•  Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker | 2021-present
•  Certified Brain Injury Specialist | 2018-present
•  Perinatal Bereavement Coordinator | 2016

Professional Experience
Director of Programs and Services | Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire -
Concord, NH I September 2017-present

•  Director at a nonprofit advocacy and education organization serving the entire state,
primarily focused on oversight of the Continuing Care Waiver programs, which
provides case management for over 600 consumers.

•  Oversight of all documentation to ensure compliance with local and federal
regulatory standards, including ensuring successful audits with CMS and NH D.HHS
as well as participation in annual quality audits

•  Direct supervision of 10+ case managers and supervisors to include assistance with
locating resources for home care for eligible consumers, monthly supervision
contact, administrative duties, and regular meetings with the State of NH to ensure
quality service provision.

•  Responsible for providing person-centered services to eligible consumers as \vell as
collaboration with managed care organizations, adult protective services, mental
health, primary care and other community based supports.

•  Management of caseloads and all hiring/personnel duties related to the case
managers and administrative staff.

•  Spearheaded implementation of an electronic medical record including complete
clinical development of the program.
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•  Lead on multiple projects related to brain injury and

this topic.

Social Worker ] Pathways Healthcare - Londondesriy, NH| A]]ial2022-January 2024
•  Provide social work intervention to active clients/patipntsand family members.
•  Assess clients'/patient' psychosocial, environmental,finaTirial and functional status

in order to coordinate appropriate plans.

•  Plan and implement patient care in collaboration with-the physician and other
disciplines (PT, OT, RN). .

•  Document social work interventions in the patient's medical record pertaining to
the referral source, reason for referral, issues, recommendations and a treatment

plan resulting in an established outcome.
•  Communicate appropriate information to patients, peers, managers, physicians,

department and other agencies involved.
•  Integrate problem solving methodology and quality improvement in approaching

problem areas related to patient care and organizational processes.

Social Worker (float) | St. Joseph Hospital - Nashua, NH | August 2015-December
2019

•  Psychiatric social worker responsible for crisis evaluation in an emergency room
setting, as well as mainagement of patients within the hospital with mental health
and/or substance use disorders

o Crisis assessment and referral for inpatient psychiatric hospitalization or
detox for adults and children, coordination of services with outpatient
providers, linking to community resources, collaboration with an
interdisciplinary team, and family support services.

•  Medical social worker responsible for service coordination and discharge planning
in the Emergency Department, ICU and on medical/surgical floors, to include
referral for appropriate community support, facilitating Medicare/Medicaid
covered services, family support, bereavement and end of life care and planning,
coordination with an interdisciplinary team for appropriate delivery of care.

•  Perinatal bereavement support to women experiencing ectopic pregnancy loss,
miscarriage, or stillbirth. Provision of bereavement support and ongoing follow up
support post discharge and link to community resources for grief management.

Social Worker | Hampstead Hospital - Hampstead, NH | January 2013-February 2017

•  Clinical social worker at a 60-bed psychiatric facility serving children, adolescents,
' and adults where programs of admission include developmental, psychiatric, and
substance abuse services.

•  Telephonic crisis intervention, review of clinical information to determine
appropriate placement at the hospital, upkeep of clinical documentation, face-to-
face level of care evaluations for admission, collaboration between service

providers, link to appropriate aftercare services, coordination with outpatient
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providers, utilization reviews with insurance companies for initial and continued
hospitalization coverage, and administrative tasks.

Social Worker | St. Mary's General Hospital - Passaic, NJ | September 2014-August
2015

•  Social worker for a large medical hospital serving the emergency room, iCU,
maternal and child health, and medical/surgical units.

•  Responsibilities include provision of assistance to patients with social,
psychological, financial, and hospital discharge planning issues.

• Working with patients, families, and physicians to ensure an appropriate plan of
care upon discharge as well as providing crisis intervention, planning and
arranging for short-term rehabilitation programs and long-term care, referral to
appropriate community resources, collaboration between service providers, and
completion of advanced.directives and end-of-life planning and care.

PACT Wellness Clinician | Bridgeway Behavioral Health Services - Jersey City, NJ |
July 2014-August 2015
•  Clinical lead for a team providing mental health services for over 70 adults with

• severe and persistent mental illness and co-occurring substance use disorders,
through the Program for Assertive Community Treatment.

•  Provider of community based recovery-oriented services including wellness
initiatives, job development, and dual disorder treatment.

•  Responsible for community outreach, medication education, upkeep of clinical
documentation including individual recovery plans and psychosocial assessments,
completion of intakes and review of referrals from higher levels of care.

•  Responsible for supervision, skill assessment and teaching for team members, and
ensuring that interventions are effective and recovery oriented.

Mental Health Clinician (2"'' year MSW Internship) | Arbour Counseling -
Haverhill, MA | September 2013-May 2014

•  Clinician at a partial hospitalization program serving adults. Responsible for
group facilitation for up to 20 participants of the program enrolled for mental
.health and/or substance abuse issues, as well as individual therapy for clients
of the program on a weekly basis.

•  Facilitated psychotherapeutic, psychoeducational, and expressive therapy .
groups.

•  Other responsibilities include coordination with medication providers and
other clinicians, upkeep of clinical documentation, family meetings, assisting
the program director with admissions, psychosocial assessments and
administrative duties.

Social Worker (1^^ year MSW internship) | Southern New Hampshire Medical
Center Behavioral Healthcare Unit - Nashua, NH | September 2012-May 2013

•  Social worker on a 13-bed inpatient psychiatric unit serving adults in emergent •
psychiatric situations.
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•  Responsible for care coordination with outside providers and discharge planning
including referrals to social service agencies and other community resources, family
meetings, psychosocial assessments, facilitation of psychotherapeutic groups,
upkeep of clinical documentation through use of an electronic medical record, and
administrative duties.

Psychiatric Rehabilitation Specialist | Greater Nashua Mental Health Center -
Nashua, NH | March 2010-December 2012

•  Clinical case manager for a caseload of 50 adults with severe and persistent mental
illness. Responsibilities include provision of community-based support for clients
suffering from extreme mental health and/or substance abuse issues, upkeep of
clinical documentation through use of an electronic medical record, and
administrative duties.

•  Certified provider of functional support services, supported employment, illness
management and recovery, as well as case management. Case management duties
included referrals to other community resources to best meet the needs-of clients
served.

•  Responsible for facilitation of a weekly psychotherapeutic group addressing
women's mental health issues.

Research Assistant! Suffolk University - Boston, MA 1 September 2008-May 2009

•  Research assistant in the cognitive neuroscience department at a major
university.

•  Responsible for evaluation of MR! data to determine a neurological basis for
creativity using a specialized computer program for volumetric analysis.

•  Other responsibilities included development of a poster and presentation as
well as input for publication.

Awards & Honors

•  Phi Alpha Honor Society | January 2012-May 2014

•  Phi Sigma Alpha Honor Society | January 2008-May 2008

Publications & Papers
Exploring creativity and its neural bases. A poster presented at the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology.Science Symposium. May 2009. Cobb, E., Susmaras, T., Wiebe-Moore, D., Flint
(Chase), K. & Gansler, D.

References

Available upon request
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LORI HAMEL SANDEFUR

EXPERIENCE: BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE,Concord. NH
Have worked remotely from Connecticut since 2002 ,
(October 2010 to Present)

Director of Events & Special Projects: In addition to ma'mlaining previous duties as Program Coordinator,
additional responsibilities include new event development,(Heads Up Half Marathon), marketing,
sponsorship development, grant writing, creation of a website resource for parents of new teen drivers
www.nhDarentsofteendrivers.com. and introduction of amionthly training series in January of 2016.

(April 1998 to October 2010)
Program Coordinator. Responsible for coordinating fundraising events for the association. This includes
our annual educational brain injury and stroke conference. Brain Matters Educational Series, Walk-By-
The-Sea, Vertical Challenge Winter Event and Service Credit Union Boston Portsmouth Air Show.
Responsibilities include sponsor and exhibitor development, organizing and chairing planning.

' committees, obtaining speakers, applications for continuing education, securing event venues, selecting
caterers, menu planning, audio visual needs, entertainment, brochures, e-blasts. and volunteer
recruitment and management.

THINKFIRST NATIONAL INJURY PREVENTION FOUNDATION

(June 2002 to July 2016) A Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Prevention Program

New Hampshire State Chapter Director: Coordinate ThinkFirst presentations to NH schools for students in
grades K-12 on injury prevention. ThinkFirst programs educate young people about their personal
vulnerability and the importance of making safe choices. Buckle up, drive safe and sober, and avoid
violent situations.'

COMMUNITY SERVICES COUNCIL OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. Concord, NH
(January 1995 to February 1998) A human services agency that provided services to traumatically brain
injured and developmentally disabled individuals..

Marketing Consultant: Responsible for marketing Traumatic Brain Injury, Home Care and Developmental
Disability services throughout New Hampshire to increase public awareness and expand referral base.
Implemented a formal referral process, creating a more effective and efficient system. Developed and
designed new collateral marketing materials. Co-facilitated the JCAHO preparation process for the
agency's Horhe Care program.

INTEGRATED HEALTH SERVICES INC., Manchester, NH (February 1992 to March 1994) a provider of
Skilled Nursing Care & Subacute Care Services.

Regional Marketing Director. Responsibilities included obtaining contracts with local insurance, HMO and
PPO providers; coordinating statewide marketing efforts via group presentations and joint marketing;
assisting with interviewing, hiring and training of new marketing staff; implementing marketing and sales
plan in concert with facility administrator and marketing department.

Senior Case Manager. Responsible for managing facility marketing and staff. Marketed to key insurance,
physician and hospital referral sources. Organized facility seminars and open houses. Developed annual
marketing and sales plans. Identified and recommended development of new program offerings and
existing program enhancements.

Case Manager: Performed patient screening assessments. Worked closely with patient and family
members during the referral process. Marketed to and educated insurance case managers, physicians
and hospital referral sources on subacute care, insurance verification and cost and benefit analysis for

'  treatment plans. Responsible for generating referrals and admissions.
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NEW MEDICO NEUROLOGICAL REHABILITATION SYSTEM

Lynn, MA. {April 1990 to January 1992)

Marketing Associate: Responsible for establishing and maintaining a solid base of referral sources.
Worked closely with patient and family members during the referral process. Assisted referral sources by
providing updated program information, clinical consultation and education. Developed a network with
physicians and other professionals in the field of rehabilitation through target marketing and sales events.

EDUCATION: Professional Grant Development Workshop, Hartford University, 2010
UCONN, Bachelor of General Studies, Social Science Theme, Graduated with Honors
Rivier University, Nashua, NH; AS, Marketing
Castleton University, Castleton, VT; Social Work Coursework
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ERIN P. HALL

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

1999 - Present

BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Associate Executive Director

CONCORD, NH

Organize and coordinate operations of Neuro-Resourcc Facilitation Program
Provide overall support and supervision to Neuro-Resource Facilitators
Work with other states regarding Neuro-Resource Facilitation Program

Develop in-service educational training programs
Supervise college interns
Coordinate with Bureau of Developmental Services on brain injury issues
Provide information and referral assistance to survivors, family members and professionals
Provide training to school systems

Coordinate Brain Injury Community Support Program

1998-1999

BUREAU OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES

TBl PLANNING GRANT PROJECT COORDINATOR

CONCORD. NH

Organized and coordinate day to day operation of planning process for federal grant
Developed comprehensive work plan
Assisted in development of Advisory Board
Coordinated activities and serve as staff to Advisory Board
Worked with contracted consultants to plan, developed and subsequently implement
comprehensive needs assessment to address supports, services and consumer satisfaction
Assisted in planning regional public forums
Performed 1:1 interviews with experts in the field

Facilitated group discussions regarding needs in the State of New Hampshire
Acted as liaison between consultants and,project staff
Coordinated grant evaluation plan activities
Assisted in recruitment of participants for grant
Assisted in development of statewide action plan
Worked with Division, Area Agencies and consultants in identifying and addressing needs of survivors and
families

♦  Participated on the Acquired Brain Injury Community Care Waiver Review Committee

1994-1998

HEART SYSTEM, INC/COMMUNITV CROSSROADS REGION 10
SUPPORT COORDINATOR

DERRY,NH

Organized resources and supports for individuals with an Acquired Brain Disorder
Hired and supervised support staff for H EART System, Inc.
Presented to organizations regarding brain injury and HEART System, Inc.
Provided supports to school age children
Developed and negotiated program budgets
Monitored vendor programs to ensure compliance with contracts
Assisted individuals regarding Medicare/Medicaid benefits
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Erin P. Hall Page 2

VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

1999 - Present Parent Information Center

Educational Surrogate for individuals in schoolsystEzn^vho have a disability

EDUCATION

2004 Ameriean Academy for the Certification of Brain Injury Specialists
• Brain Injury Association of America
Certified Brain Injury Specialist (CBIS)

1990-1994 Salem" State College, Salcm, MA

Master'of Science in Counseling and Psychological Services
Concentration: Industrial/Organizational Psychology.

1986-1989' Northeastern University, Boston, MA
Bachelor of Science in Sociology/Anthropology
Concentration: Human Services

AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS

2008 Vermont's 20"^ Annual Brain Injury Conference, Burlington, Vermont Workshop:
"Who's Caring for the Caregiver?"

New England Residential Service Coordinators Annual Conference, North Conway, New
Hampshire Workshop: "Climbing Together - Supporting People Living with a Brain
Injury or Stroke"

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire 25^" Annual Brain Injury & Stroke
Conference, Manchester, New Hampshire Workshop: "1 Just Don't Know What to Do or
Where to Go? Come Find Out!"

Brain Injury Association of Pennsylvania 2008 Annual Conference, Harrisburg,
Pennsylvania, Keynote Speaker: "Neuro-Resource Facilitation - Getting Started"

2007 In-service Training Austin House, Webster, NH: "Living with an individual who is living
with a Brain Injur)'"

2006 Annual Adult Day Conference, Salem, New Hampshire Workshop: "Alzheimer's Disease and
Brain Injuiy: A Closer Look"

2005 Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire 22"* Annual Brain Injury and Stroke Conference,
Concord, New Hampshire Workshop: "Who's Caring for the Caregiver? Creative Ideas and
Integrative Solutions"

Housing Services Training Session Connecting the Dots: Key Disability Resources, Bedford, New
Hampshire Workshop: "Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire: Who We Are and What We
Do" . ■

2004 Annual Brain lnjur>' Conference, Columbia, South Carolina Workshop: "Who's Caring for the
Caregiver? Creative Ideas and Integrative Solutions"

2002 Adjunct Professor Springfield College School of Humans Ser\'ices, Manchester New Hampshire
Workshop: "But He Looks Fine...Invisible Trauma"
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Erin P. Hall . Page 3

AWARDS/PRESENTATIONS (com.)

2001 . Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire 18''' Annual Conference, Concord New
Hampshire Workshop: "Navigating Benefits: Making Sense of the Alphabet Soup &
Getting What You're Entitled To"

Brain Injury Association of America 20''' Annual Symposium, Atlanta! OA Workshop
"Families Helping Families"

2000 Adjunct Professor Springfield College School of Humans Services, Manchester New Hampshire
Workshop: "But He Looks Fine...Invisible Trauma"

Springfield College School of Human Services, Manchester New Hampshire
Workshop "Trends in Human Services"

Head and Spinal Cord Injury Division Service Coordination Conference Myrtle Beach,
South Carolina Workshop "Creativity and Courage in Service Coordination: Supporting
People to New Ways of Thinking and Being After a Brain Injury"

1999 Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire Annual Conference
Workshop "Special Workshop for Survivors and Families"

1997 In-service regarding HEART System, Inc. and Traumatic Brain Injury
Hampstead Hospital, Hampstead, NH

1996 "Causes and Consequences of Brain Injury: Implications for Caregivers"
Sponsored by Brain Injury Services ofNew Hampshire Division of Mental Health and
Developmental Services and the Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire
Workshop "Understanding and Meeting the Special Needs of Families"

1995 ' Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire Annual Conference
Workshop "Supported Employment for ABI (Acquired Brain Injury)"

1993 Massachusetts Association for Persons in Supported Employment Annual Conference
Presented original work "Small Team Approach"

1992 and 1993 Statewide Head Injury Program (SHIP) Vendor Conference
1993 Social Security Work Incentives - Plans for Achieving Self Support (PASS)
Impairment-Related Work Expenses (IRWE)
1992 Programmatic Innovated Ideas

1992 Outstanding Job Coach for the Northeast Region
Presented by the Massachusetts Rehabilitation Commission (MRC) and
Office of Employment Services (OMS)

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Case Management Society of America Brain Injury and Substance Abuse Council
Case Management Society of New England Consumer Policy Advisory Board
Statewide Independent Living Council (SILC) National Association of State Head Injury
2"''Chair 2008, l« Chair 2009, Chair 2010-2012 Administrators (NASHIA)
^  _ I- 1 . Moore Center Services Human Rights Committee
Governors Task Force on Employment "
New Hampshire Benefits Planners
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Krystal Chase
Director of Programs and
Services $  12,000.00

$90,000.00

Lori Sandefur
Director of Events & Special
Protects $■ 6,000.00 $82,203.00

Erin Hall Associate Executive Director $  2,000.00 $130,000.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSfflRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

PIVISWNFOR BEHA VtORAL HEALTH

UriA. WMrer 139 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
lalcrto Coanlisientr 603-271-9S44 l-S004S2-3345Ext9^

Fax: 603*271-4332 TDD Access: 1^*735-2964 www.dbhs.ab4ov
KiU>S.K6x
Director

'January 30. 2023

His ̂ cellency, Governor ChHstopher T. Suhunu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for BehaviorarHealth,
to enter Into a Sole Source amendment to an e)dsting contract with Br^n Injury Association of
New Hampshire '(VC#15^86), Concord, NH to continue raising awareness of the connection
between Substance Use Disorder and Brain Injury, by exercising a contract renewal option with
ho change to the. price limitation of $200,000 and extending the completion date from June 30.
2023. to June 30. 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 20, 2022, item 1^20.

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the Contractor Is the only professional assodation
focused on brain trijury In New Hampshire.

This request is to exterid the contract completion dater at no additional cost, to allow the
Contractor to continue to raise avyareness of and to provide education on the connection between
Brain Injury and Substance Use Disorder to persons who have, sustained or are in danger of
sustaining brain Injuries related to their substance use, their families end careglvers. medical and
other healthcare providers; by utilizing existing State Rsca! Year 2023 funding that wiil be carried
iforvyard to State ■ Fiscal Year 2024. Av^reness and educational efforts include. continued
fadiitation of a speaker's bureau; .presentations on the connection of Br^n Injury and Substance
Use bisdrders;'distribution of printed materials focused on Brain Injury and Substance .Use
Disofdem; and a dedicate^ webpage on'the Contractors' website, devot^ to the topic of Bra^in
Injury and Substance Use Disorders. This extension will-allow the vendor to reach additional
audiences through presentations and distribution of materials at.conferences, partner with public
informatiori organiz^lons to develop educational products adapted to multiple audiences, and
engage schools to increase substance use prevention messaging to students.

The D^artment v^l) continue monitoring services through r^ularly scheduled meetings
and.the revjew^bf quarterly reports to ensure the delivery of quality services.

As referenced,in Exhibit.A, Revisions to Standard Contract Provisioris of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to exterid the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of aervices. ayailable funding, agreement of the pa^es and
Governor and Council approval; The Department js exercisfng.its option to renew services for
one i(1) of the two (2) years available.

'- The ptparlmenl ofH^hh and Human Servi^'Miuhn i$ to join eommiiniiia and families
inpnviding opporiuniiiet for ciiiiens to achieue health and independence.
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His Excellency. Governor Chrfstoplter T. Sunurtu
and the Honorable Council

Paoe2pf2

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be less education
and awareness of the connections between Brain Injury and Substance Use Disorders and
persons with co-occurring Brain Injury and Substance Use Disorders may receive inadequate
treatment due to lack of identification and accommodations for their brain injury.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.959, FAIN #811083955.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer avalf^le, additional General Funds
will not be requested to'support this program.

-  Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner
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Departmenlcfffte^lgh4iuiaWiiuja3a€jEnBapes
■AijiMiiitfnuirttfM

This Amendment to the Brain Injury and SjibstatmeUsBBisDnterSMBpOTt contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire. Department of HEalthaiid«no3anSeimoesi(-*State" or "Department") and Brain
Injury Association of New Hampshire ("theConteactoT),

■ W.HEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (theXsorttnaCT)approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 20, 2022, (Item 20), the ContractoragreedtDperform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in coasidecaiionof certain sums specified; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A, Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
. in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1, Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2024

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore,-Director. ■

SO)
Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
SS-2022-BDAS-04-BRAIN-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified bytfcfetoiendment remain In full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and approval.

j

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as ■of the date written below,

State of New+tampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/30/2023

Date

-Oocutignctf by:

Name: Katja s. fox
Title:

Director

1/24/2023

Date

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire
DbcvSI^Md by;

Name: Steven wade
Title:

Executive Director

Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire A-S-1.2

SS-2022-BDAS-04-BRAIN-01-A01 Page 2 of 3
r:-.
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OftwSlon*^ by;

1/31/2023

Ooc«Slon«d by;

Date Name; Robyn Guarino
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive .Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ̂  (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Brain Injury Assodalion of New'Hampshi/e A-S-1.2

SS-2022-BOAS-04-BRAIN-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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STATE QF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

1Z9 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
803-271-9544 I^S00-8S2O345 Cil. 9544

Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Acccti: I-800-73S-3964 mm.dhhs.nh.QOv

March 8, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the pepartmenl of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a Sole Source contract with Brain Injury Association of New Hampshire
(VC#156086). Concord. New.Hampshire. In the amount of $200,000 to raise awareness of the
connection between Substance Use Disorder and Brain Injury by developing a speakers bureau,
vyebsite, and printed materials, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective
upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2023.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line Hems within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: OIV FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU. OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,
SABG ADDITIONAL (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 074-500585 Community Grants ,92059501 $40,000

2023 074-500505 Community Grants .....92059501 $160,000

Total $200,000'

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor Is the only professional association
focused on brain Injury In New Hampshire. In the course of their normal worf^, they previously
convened a planning group to Identify strategies to identify and.address cp-occurrIng brain Injury
end Substance Use Disorder (S.UD) and have identified experts and materials to resource these
efforts' resulling.in significantly reduced startup time and costs.

The purpose of this request Is to raise awareness of and provide education on the
connection-between Brain Injury (B!) and SUD. To accomplish this, the Contractor will provide
the following services to persons who have sustained or are In danger of sustaining brain injuries
related to SUD; their families and caregtvers; medical and other healthcare providers, including
behavioral health providers; educators; adolescents; and young adults:

Th9 Depertmtnt o/.Htallh and Human Servieei'Mtttion is lo join communilics and famiUts
ill fjrovidhig opporluniliti hr cilittnt to aehicvt health and iude'peii'dtnee.
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His Excellency, Governor Chrt$lopt>er T. Suriunu
anO the Hoixxabte Council

Page 2 of 2

•  Develop a speakers bureau to raise awareness of the connection between brain
injuries and SUD; . .

•  Conduct at least six (6) presentations to persons who have sustained or are in
danger of sustaining a brain injury related to Substance tJse DisorcSer and their

:  families and caregivers; healthcare providers; adolescents, young adults and
educators by June 30, 2023;

•  Develop a section of its website devoted to the topic of Bl and SUD; and

•  Develop, print, and distribute copies of printed materials focused on Bl and SUD.

The Department wijl monitor the Contractor's performance by:

•  Reviewing quarterly status reports;

•  Revievying a final report; and

•  Holding compliance meetings every other month, or as needed.

As referenced in section 3 of the attached agreement and Exhibit A paragraph 3
. subparagraph 3.3, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for, up tvvo (2) additional
years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and Governor and Cpuncil approval.

ShKiukl the Governor and Council no! authorize this request the Contractor will not be able
to sufficiently lncrease..awareness of the connections, between brain injuries arxl SUD and
persons with co-occurring brain injuries and SUD may receive Inadequate treatment due to lack
of Identification and accommodation for their brain Injury.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #9l959, FA|N <^TI08395S

Respectfully .submitted,

Lori A. Shibinelle

Commissioner
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FORM NUMBERP-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subjfci:_Brain Injury and Substance Use Disorder Support (SS-2022-BDAS-O4-BRAIN.01) •

Notice: This ogrcemcnl and all of its ottochmcnts shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to.signing the contract.

.  • ACRF.EiMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Slate Agency Name .

Ne.w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Scr\'}ccs

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name '

Brdin Injury Association of New Hampshire

1.4 Contractor Address

52 Pleasant Street *•

(:oncord.NH 03301
1,5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)225-8400

1.6 Account Number

05-95-92-920510-

19810000

1.7 Completion Date

June 30. 2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$200,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

•Nathan D. Wliiic, Director

I.IO Slate Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631 ■ ..

l.ll Contractor Signature
—06CwHow»tf ty:

Dn,.3/17/2022

1.12 Name and Title of Cotiimcior Signatory

Steven wade Executive Director

1.13 State Ajgcncy Signot.urc
OocuSlgtwdbF

1.14 Name and Title orSlntc Agency Signatory •

Katja S. FOX Director •

l..rS Approvat.by IhcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

,Dy: Director, On:

1.16 . Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance aiid Execution) (ifapplicable)
DocuSlgMtf by; -

By| . . On: V30/2022 _ '
1.17 Approva/I))'tlie ilovcrnor and Executive Council (if applicable) '

G&C Item number; ■G&C'Mccling Date;

Page I of 4
Contractor Initials

SO)
.D„eJ^I777UZ2
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORAIED. The Sraic of New
Hftmpshire. acting through the agency Identified in block I.I
("State"), engages cdnirtictor idcnlificd' in block. 1.3
("iContractdr") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
NN-ork or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by-reference C'SeWices").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPEETlOiN OF SERVICES.
3.1 Nonsithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of ihc State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties Kercundcr, shall
become effective on the dale the Governor and E.xccutivc
Council .approve this Agreement as indicated In block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, i.n which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agrccmcm is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Coniracior commcrtccs the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contmctor prior to
the EITcctivc Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Coniracior. and in the event that this Agreement does not become
erreciive, the State shall have no Imbiliiy to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services "performed.
Contractor must complete all Services.by the Completion Date
specified In block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Noivvnthslanding any prb.vision of this Agreement to the
contrary, .all obligations of the State hcrcundcr, including,'
without,limitation, the'continuance of payments.hcrcundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds arfccicd by any stale or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or othcryvisc modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided iti.EXHIBIT 8, in «"h,olc or in
port. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hcrcundcr in excess of such available appropriated funds! In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the

. State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become nvailable. If over, and shall hove ihc ri^i.to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agrcemeni immediately upon,
giving the Gontrtcior notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified" in block 1.6 in the
event funds.in^ihat Account are reduced or unas-ailablc.

5. CONTRACT'PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ .
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment'
lore identified and morc.particulac;!)' described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorpomtcd herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the

..only and the complete rcimburscntcnt to.Ihc Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
•performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State resen'cs the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or pemtitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA BO:?^ or any other proNnsion of law.
5.4.Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to ihe
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all paymicnis authorized, or actually made
hereundcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor- shall comply with all applicable statutes, lovvs,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
auihorit'tes which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limjtcd to. civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agrcemeni is
funded in any part by monies ofihe United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
.ind statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Coniracior shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
•property Iosvs.
6.2 During the, term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for cmploymicnt
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take nlTirmntive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to pcnnit the State or United States
access to ajw of the Conlrbcior's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules', regulaiiohs
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own cxpetisc provide ail'persbimcl
necessary' to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
nil pcrsonfKl ̂ engaged In the Services shall be qualified to
perform' the Services, and shall be properly licensed niul
oihcnvisc aullwrizcd to do so under nil applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during :ihc term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after .the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire; and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
pcrfon]! thc,Scrviccs to hire, any person who is a State cinploycc
or official, who is materially involved In the procurement,
administration or" pcrfonnoncc lOf, "this Agreement. This
provision shall survivc termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer spccincd in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agrecincnl, the
Contracting Oniccr's decision shall be final for Ihe Stale.

Pngc 2 of 4
'Conlfflclor Iniliols
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event -
of Default"):
8.1.1 failure 'to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit ony report required hereunder; and/or
|.l failure to pcrfonn any other covenant, tcmt or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor d written notice specifying the Event of
Default artd requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesscr^spccincation of time, thirty (30) days from the
dale of the notice; end if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
•terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) 6ayi after giving the
Contractor notice of icrmmation;

8.2.2 give Ihc Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under'this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise' accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice nniil such time as the State
determines that the C^niroclor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a \ni(tcn noticc specifying the l-A'cnl of
Default and set olT ogaittst any other obligations the State may
oxvc to the Contractor nny damages the Slate suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a wiittcn notice specifying the Event of
Dcfouli, treat the Agreement ns breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue nnyof Its.remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the.Siatc to enforce any provisions hereof oflcr
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce' each and
nlfof the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default oh (he part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8. the State may. at Its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement fpr any reason, in whole or
in part, by.ihiny (30) days wTillcn notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terrninaic the Agreement. ̂
9.2 In the event of on early termination of this Agreement for
ony reason other than-the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, m the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer,-not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of tcrminalioh, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services perfomjed, and the contract price earned, to
nnd including the dale of termination. ThcTorm, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of thc'Tcrminaljon Report shall
be Identical.to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B." In addition, oi the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, \ytthin IS.-dBys'ofnotice'bfcflrly tctminalton, develop and

l'agC:3

submit-to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

preservation,
10.1 As used in this" Agreement, the word '"data" shall niean all
informalion and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agrecmenr, including, but not limited to, oil studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts; sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, compmer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data nnd any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for (hot purpose
under this Agreement, shall be (he property' of the Stale, and
shall be returned to the Suite upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndcntlalily of data shall be governed byN.H. RSA
chapter 9t'.^ or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Siote.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent rK)r on
employee of the State. Neither the Coninjcior nor ony of its
officers, employees, ngcnts or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive uny bcne'nts, workers' compcnsatioti or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUHCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or othcr\visc transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior wxiitcn notice, which
shall be provided to the Stale at least fifteen (IS) days prior lo
the assignment, and a written consent of the Slate. For purposes
of- this pRrngraph. a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of- Control'' means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a'lransaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affilialcs, becomes the
direct or indirect ouiicr of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Coniru.clor, or (b) the sale ofall or siibslnniially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be' subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Stnic.
Tlie State is.cntitled to.copics of nlj subcontracts and n»ignmcnt
agreements and shall not be bound by nny provisions contained
in a subconlfact or an assignment agreement'lo which it ts noi.a
parly.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise cxcinpied by law,
. the Conlraclor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
oITiccrs ond'Cmployccs, from and agoinsl any and oil claims,
liabilities and costs Tor any personal Injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against

'the State, its officers or employees, \vhich arise out.of(orAvhicli
may be claiified td nrise"oul oO the acts or omission^ (he

oM fsU)
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, r^ktcss or inichtional conduct. The State shnll not
be liable for any cosis incurred by the Contrpclpr arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a ivaiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunit)' Is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall surM'vc the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole c.vpense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall .require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
M.I.I commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injurj', death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
OF e.vccss; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
•subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in nn amotirii not less than
80% of the NN-holc rcplaccmcnl value of the property.
14.2 The policies described In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the Siaic
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed In Ihc State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OITrccr
identified iti block 1.9; or his or her successor, a ccrtificatc(s)of
insurance, for" all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTtcer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatc(s) of insurance
for all rcncwaUs) of itisurancc required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccrtificalc(s) of insurance and any
renewals ihercofshall be attached and are mcorporatcd herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
'15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, ccnifics
and wtirrohts that the Contractor is in compliance uHih or c.xcmpi
ifroni, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compcnsolion").

'  15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requircmcttts
of N.H. RSA chttp'tcr 281-A. Coniroctor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee io secure and maintam,
payment of Workers' Compcnsati()n in connection with

" activities which ihc person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
•Agreement. The Contractor sliall furnish the Comrocting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compcnsnlion In the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-.A 'and any applicable.,renewal(s) thereof, which" sliall be
attached and'are incorporated'herein byrefcrence. The State
shall not be responsible for payment' of any Workers'
Compchsntion premiums or for any other, clain) or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of 'Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Slate of New-Hampshire
Workers' Compensation law's In connection ■ with the
performance of the Scn;iccs under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE." Any notice by n party hereto to the oihcr party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, svoivcd
or discharged only by an instrument- in writing signed by, the
parties hereto and only after approxral of such amendment,
\\-aivef or discharge by the .Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant lo.State taw, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OK LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shnll
be governed, inlerprctcd and coitsirued In accordance with the
la\\-s of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and,assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the uording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no nilc
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be broughi and,
maintained In New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction (hereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In (he event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 fom^ (os modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agfecmcnl shall not be
•construed to confer any such benefit.'

21. HEADINGS. The hcadings'lhroughout Ihc Agreement ore
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
.sliall in i>o .way be held to c.xplaln, modify, amplify c>r aid in ihc^
interpretation, ccnslruclio'n tfr meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in ihenitachcd EXHIBIT A arc incorporolcd
hc'rcin by reference. '=

23. SEVER/VBILI'H'. Inihe'eventanyofihc provisions of this
Agreement ore held by a court of compcicni jurisdiction to be
coniraiy to any .stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force nnd.clTeci.

24. .ENTIRE AGREEMENT.'.This Agrcemenl, which may be
exccnied in a number of counterparts, each of which "shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between Ihc parties, and supersedes alt prior
agrccmentvand understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBITA

Exhibit Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

■1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph's, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:
3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2) additional years;

from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
.Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Pelegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: . .

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractpr is responsible .to ensure subcontractor-
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall, have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the Slate with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

&SS-2022-BOAS-O4-BRAIN^1 BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE .Contfaclor Inillab
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EXHIBITS

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. . The Contractor shall provide services In this agreement to:

1.1.1. Persons who have sustained or are in danger of sustaining a brain
injury ('Bi") related to Substance Use Disorder ("SUD") and their
families and caregiyers;

1.1.2. Medical and other healthcare, including behavioral healthcare
providers:

1.1.3. Adolescents, Young Adults and Youth Educators.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to days shall mean .business
days.

1.4.. For the purposes of this agreement, all references to business houre shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, excluding state and
federal holidays.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop a Speakers Bureau to raise awareness of the
•  connection between BI and SUD at targeted conferences and professional

association meetings. The Contractor shall:

i;5.1. Organize a targeted and proactive Speakers Bureau;

1.5.2. Update presentations on SUD/BI and Mental Health;

1.5.3. Ensure a minimum of six (6) presentations on BI and SUD are
conducted reaching targeted audience as defined in 1.1.;

1.5.4. Pay..Speakefs expenses for up to six (6) speaking engagements,
including appearances on panel discussions on the topic; and

V  1.5,5. Use social media.and other promotional tools (newsletters, websites,
etc.) to promote speaking engagements in order to maximize value.

1.6. The Contractor shall deyejop a section of its website devoted to the topic of
SUD and BI by;

'' i;6.1. Working with a subcontractor to reformat the current.website to
simpjify updates.

1.6.'2. Collecting and organizing the jhfoimaiion specific to the identified
target audiences on the SUD/BI .section of the website.

1.6.'3. Developing informational blogs.

i.6.4. Updating corilent and issue blogs'on a monthly basis, at the,
minimum. ■ • „

S(D
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EXHIBIT B

1.7. The pontraclor shall develop, print and distribute copies of printed materials
by;

1.7.1. Printing a larger quantity of its existing two-sided rack cards and
, ; ' ' widely ' distribute them at presentations, through partner
.  . organizations and by request.

1.7.2. Translating frequently accessed materials into Spanish and other
languages as needed.

1.7.3. Developing and printing new materials geared to targeted audiences.

T7.4. Distributing select materials via partners and making thern available
in strategic locations.

1.8. The Contractor shall evaluate the effectiveness of campaign materials by
measuring knowledge and application of information provided to targeted
audiences by:

1.8.1. . Tracking web analytics on their site:

1.8.2. Developing and implementing survey instruments to measure
.  knowledge levels and application resulting from exposure to

■! . messaging through presentations and materials; and
1-.8.3.. Facilitating focus groups with members of target audiences to

identify message retention, related application of Information and
additional materials requested related to BI/SUD.

1.9. The Contractor shall participate in compliance meetings every two months, or
as needed, with the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through H and K,. which are
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Reporting Requirements.

3.1. ' The Contractor shall submit quarterly status reports, which include:
3J..1. Speakers engagements detailing the:

3.1.1.1. Number of presentations;

3.1.1.2. Topics of presentations;

3.1.1..3. Types of audiences presented to; and
•3.f.1.4. -Number of attendees.

3.1.2. Website posts detailing the:
3.1.2.1. Number of new posts; and

-OS
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EXHIBITB

3.1.2.2. Topics of new posts.

3.1.3, Printed materials detailing the status of:

3.1.'3.1; New printed materials-developed and disseminated;
and

3.1.3.2. Printing and dissemination of existing printed materials.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit a final report no later than 30 days following the
contract corhpletion date that includes the results of the campaign evaluation.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall provide six (6) presentations on SUD/BI to targeted
audiences identified in 1..1. . "

■4.2. The Department shall monitor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results that reflect at least 85% of attendees reporting
Increased knowledge related to Bl and SUD.

'4.3. The Department shall monitor performance of the contract by trainee
satisfaction survey results .that reflect at least 60% of healthcare professionals
indicating hovy they will apply Information gained.

4.4. The Department shall monitor Contractor performance by reviewing quarteriy
and final reports provided by the Contractor.

4.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful.outcomes.

4.6. The Contractor must provide other key data and metrics,'including client-level
demographic, performance, and service data, as requested by the Department.

5. Additional Ternis

5.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
5.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or'federal

legislation or court orders may have an Impact on the. Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and.experidlture requirements under'lhis Agreement so as jp achieve
compliance therewith.

y  •*

5.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

■5.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of Ihe.Agreement
.Effective Date, a detailed description of the cohimunicatlon 'access
and language assistance setVices to be provided to ensure
"meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals'who are deaf .or have h^^ng -

SS-'2022-BOAS-O4.BRAlN-dl BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Contractor InlU^ JJyItTUTZ
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loss; individualsvtoku*ilffiudiiTte»etown^on; and individuals who
• haye speech chalterr^.

5.3. Credits and Copyright Ownec^i^

5:3.1.. All documents, notices, ̂sness Teleases. research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting frorh the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract.with the State of Nevy Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided In part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.,'the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

5.3.2. All materials produced or purchased urider the'Agreement shall.have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use. v

5.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to;

5.3.3.1. Brochures. -

5.3.3.2. Resource directories.

5.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

5.3.3.4. Posters.

5.3.3.5. Reports.

5.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.'

6. Records

6.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. .Bo'oks, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evjdericing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the^ Contract, and all income received

•; .or collected by the Contractor.

6.1.2. All records must be maintained .in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

SS-2022-BDAS-<M-BRAIN^l BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAK1PSHIRE ContfDctOf li^llals
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EXHIBIT B

6.'2. During the term of this Agreement and the.period for retention hereunder.-the
Department, the United States Department OT Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the.-Agreement for purposes of audit',
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon-the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement tond upon
payrnentof the price.limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the
Agreement are.to be performed after the end of the term of this Agrjeement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall' terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain'the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expense's as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Coritractor.

SS-2022-BDAS-04-DRAIN-01 BRAW INJURY ASSOCIATIpN OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Conlroclor Initiate
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EXHIBIT C

.  Payment Terms

1." This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 100%, Substance Abuse Prevention & Treatment Block Grant, as
awarded on May 17, 2021, by the DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration, CFDA 93.959, FAINTIOBSQSS.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement: ' • -

2.1. The Department has identified the Contractor as a Sub-recipient, in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Department has identified this Agreement as NON-R&D, in
accordance with'2 CFR §200.332.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect Cost Rate of 10% applies in accordance with"2
CFR §200.414.

3. ■ Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis , for actual expenditures
incurred in the fuirtliment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-.
2, Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall:

4.1. Register with the New Hampshire Department of Administrative-Services
to obtain a Vendor Number, which "must be included on each invoice.

4.2. Ensure each invoice is.submitted in a form that is provided by, or otherwise
acceptable to the Department.

4.3. Ensure each invoice identifies and requests payment for allowable costs •
incurred in the previous month.

4.4. Ensure each invoice includes supporting docurriehtalion of allovyable costs
with each invoice that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets,_
payroll records, receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as
applicable. ■ ^ v

5., In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
.emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesbdas@dhh's.nh.gov-, or Invoices may be mailed to:

Fin'ancial Manager
Department of Health and Human'Seryices
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6. ■ The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
oTreceipt of each Invoite, s.utisequent to approval of the submitted.invpjc^^d^!

SS-2022-BOAS-p4-'BRAIN-01 BFW'N INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Contmcj^ SftL
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EXHIBIT C

if sufficient funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General
Provisions Form Num'ber P-37 of this Agreement.

7., The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than fprty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions
Block 1..7 Completion Date.

8. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and Conditions
of Exhibit 8. Scope of Services.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
"funding Under this agreemenYmay be withheld. in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any. Federal or State law, rule or regulation'applicable
to the services provided, or if the said services or products' have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

11. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made' by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining, approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

12. .'Audits

12.1. The Contractor must . email an annual audit to
melissa.s.morin@dhhs.hh.qov if any of the following conditions exist:

12.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subreclpient pursuant to 2 CFR Par|
,200, during the most recently completed fiscaj year.

12.1.2. Condition ;B - The Contractor is subject to audit purs'uant^io the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Ill-b, per^ining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

,12.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor Is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

12.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certiried.Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
•year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part

SS-W2-epAS-04.BRAJN-01 B^IN INJURY ASS(XIATION OF NEW H^PSHIRE ContiBC

3/17/2022
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200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principies, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

12.3. If Condition B or Condition C ;exists,.the Contractor shall submit an
V. annual financial .audit performed by an Independent CPA within 120

days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year;

12.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater Ihari
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

12.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is. understood a.nd agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

SS-2022'BDA$-O4-BRAtf«)1 BRAIN INJURY ASSOCIATION OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

C..V2 Pago 3 of 3 Dale.;

Contrs

3/-17/2022 •



OocuSign Envelope ID: 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-8801-ABA9AAF3048E

• o. 11 ■UI II.U1 lij.mij

Hkw HanpsMra DaparttnaM o< Ha^Bi am M«m«t SarHCM
couPLifTC ONC euoocT fork for'cach buocct fciooo

•HHoueffM UU>cwr»dtf»ct eoftitnn» ontv r«rc.artr»etef epo«<jM«> «>d l^mdea bk Wtna. tygviNno tf— 1

Tawwiw ■■>■." 1

Pujia Ti^ 1

BuagMMM'.

UllOlnawwIWilllfH

Ml MlI'uMBfC* vi* 0*iiM lnpiH

1. mi • Am n. na f

r-:

T Ml PfVMIB CM CwafKiw iami iiihIi

. t» Omi ■ HWW OMI • : >^>ei •  rM Oftvn TM

t. taM4fanMkM 1  tXlMM • I  II IMM 1 1  . '• 1 14 A

•  tilMk t in.M $ 1 ft

1  uoo^xa » ■LMiAa * ft ft ft ft .
»  1MM t  -- ifoce 1  ci 1  • ft '• • ft « ft .' ft
1 * ' ... t 1 ft ft ft ft -

IHaakM UaMMBw* ^ t 1 ft

%. t.ntM,: » ,, i 1 t ft »
■  zjr*M * tir*M » ft ft ft I:

L* 1 > t 1 ft " ft 1

N>* 1 » » ft »

1  ' t  ' • • 1 ft ft '• ft 1 • t

one* > ft ft »  1 .
1  M>M Mj.m 1 ft ft ft »

1  IJOOM t 1 1M.M t ft « ft ' • » :

X CwTvt tmtmm >  . 1 ft ft % •
Itkmmim. 1  fOOM t  -I »0« » ft »

t  »eca • MM »- 1  . • •
1 . » ft ft < • ft • »•

«M*I MLMit 1 » t ft • ft ft «•-

1  ■ !■ • t  iM«0 » iwn » ft ft ft 1

■wabMPM 1  . • • * 1 i ft ' 1

». » •
« > •  • »

II. CM* Cotka— «»* tfOn 1  MDCP ( wea 1  . . ft ' ♦ ft ft ft »
11 1 • VMim I ft •« ft ft >

IX 0*w niiB4« iwli w»«iwnY $ » .1 » ft ft *5'

ft imnm I- lUVM t • ft ft • >'

ft t^aee t IJMM t V ft }• — - ■•••—
I » •

lOtM. •  M.MOAI •
1  - -••.WIM 1  1 ft ft . ft 1  • ••• •.■- . 1

•nin kW

c-i. vr joa Bii*«

Pwl •• t

.liL



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-8801-ABA9AAF3048E

Mmm Hmpatdrw O^HMiiimii «f Hiricn wttf Human S«nHe«»

COMPtCTC ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET FEIOOO

frnnvcWom: HU oirt Hm Ut>aeblnd«i«ct cotumnn otrv Mr (Mnmcior wura lu «0B<icAbl«l antf HmtfM bv UHHS. t wrtiuim wfii Momaucanv

Ceeee* Itoe: M* •*»»*ew**n * HwW*»

Fn*wi TBk an* (Bvy M MiMn awMX

•mbm FMC JMr t. vn • Am », m

tmm

TeuJPtaewii C* CMwte Ihv* < MrtcA • FwftM ¥r dftta canfevd m9mi*-

0««rf Tanri PM1 . . a Omi ' . . • Mm - r«Mi

1  X.aae.C* I  i • ft ft«.a«.oo ft ft ft ♦
1  niaoa 1 ft NJ0iaft ft ft •, ft ft i-

1. 1  laMoe 1 ft •ftift.cd ft ft '• ft ft 4
1. faiAjiwi; »  7»8« % 1  w«o • 1 ft ft ft

umb . i ft -•>. ft '• • ft • ft ft •

Itaaak MIMaawa t \ ft . • ft ft i  e
V awMt; 1 t  •' ft ♦ ft ft

E»ir.M>U s  iJoaCB % ft ftMLCO ft ft ft ».

UA 1 ft • ft > ft * ■

• ft' 1  * »
.MMietf 1  I- »  - a. - ft' 1 ft ft i
Onwa- t & 1  •- ft ft • ft 1

A TiMl i  i24».«0 %. ft is^oa ft ft ft I
1  •eeow 1 ft ftOOOOO ft ft • « 1 1'

a  -j- % 1 ft ft ft ft *

TeWere i  teeaa t ft Mo.eo ft • i ft ft .• 1-

naiuii 1  i.aoaxa 1  ♦* ft I.CBOOO ft • > « »

BMi'iamana • • ft • ' ft ft 1

AMI M LaaA t 1 ft ft -• ft ft t

VMia 1  i^eoAa ft *•" • ft ft 1  " •.'•*2 t

9i la ».<<«»■■« ( f ft t 1 • ft ft 1.
1 • BaAMx ft ft 1 ft I

il..eM CikavtnnM Tcaiaai 1  2m.«a s ft 7MM ft ft •  a*. ft ft i
12. fcAaaniagUMwaniam 1  Z)At2A» ft » ' ♦. ft umM ft ft ft ft •<' i'
11. OBiarfieaancaauA nainjaii'ii. .ft ft ft ft ft •  .•

■awalCuma'AH <iaiia»w %  *t»m t.. ft 4,9eom ft ! f 1 1 +  ̂
ft f ft ft . « ft .1 ft

TOTM. i  xujmM .ft * ft lUJOM* 1  •• 1 ft .• ft ft 1 1.
MMt ita A nwMB «< (Mw

M> fe«^r AoMi^n af NwHmvMM
c»aaa eo«A o* tMi«\
M* c-2. trr xa aiHtm



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-8801-ABA9AAF3048E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID; PE4OFFlS-94B(MSO7-fiC0C-32382B0CE3B2

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION-REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3.of the Generai Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of tlie.Drug-Free Workpiace.Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0:41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contrectot^s representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the Generai Provisions execute the following Certincation:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US department of AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certlficaiion is.required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wortrplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V,'Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C, 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by,grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Departmenl in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fad upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it.to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street. ? ■

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing e stalemenl notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prphibiled In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness 'program (o'inform employees aboul
"1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free v«)rkplace: •
-1.2.3.. Ariy avaiiable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The'penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making It a re.quirement that each employee 16 be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy'of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the erhployee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4..1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviclion for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurnng in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing; within ten calendar days after rece'ivlng notice under
subparagraph 1.4.'2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer 6'n whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

BxhI.btl 0 > Certification regarding Drug Free Vendor Initials
■S

Wofkplftce Requirements 3/17/2022
cwoKHS/i 10713' Page 1 of 2 Date
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identincatlon number(s) of each affected grant;

.. 1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee vyho is so convicted
1.6.1.,' Taking appropriate personnel actiori against such en employee, up to and including

termination, corisistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;^

1.7. • Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3,1.4,'1.5, end 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Pe.rformance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on Tile that are not identified here.

Vendor Name:

3/17/2022

Date ^NaSer^V^mwade
Title: Executive Director

CUA>*«/110713

Exhibit D - Certincallon regarding Drug Free
Wor1<plsce Reqi4remenu
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Vendor Initials
(5
•3/17/2022

Dale



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-8801-ABA9AAF3048E

DOOjSign Envelope lO: Fe4DFF15-WBCM5D7.eC0C-32382B0C63B2

New Hampshire Departmient of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gene/al Provisions agrees to comply with the provisioris of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fdiowing Certification:

US.DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION : CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs flndicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D '
•Social Services Block GranI Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block GranI under Title VI
•Child Care Developmenit Block Grant under Jitle IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the avvarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor). .. .

2. If anylunds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any pecson'for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or ari employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
cdnlractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and'identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards al all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and ccnlracls under grants,
loans, end cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material represenlalion of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certlficalion is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Irnposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penally"of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure." ,. •

Vendor Name: •

3/17/2022

"klT- ^ ^
Title:

Executive Ovrector

OJ

sw
Exhibit E - Ccrtllicfilion Regarding Lobbylr^g Vendor Inliiala
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply wlih the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and furtheragrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections .1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the-
certiricatlon set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall.submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

. participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction. . .

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determiried-to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or'default.

.4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this"^proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification.was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous b'y reason of changed
circumstances. ' ■ .

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," !suspended.* "ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction,* "participant." "person/ "primary coveredlransaclion," "principal.'-"proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the-
proposed covered transaction be entered inlo.'it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction vyith a person who is debarred, sus^nded. declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant furtheragrees by submitting this proposal that It will include the
clause tilled "Certification Regarding pebarment. Suspension. Ineligibility end Voluntary Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lowerlier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered (rahsaclioris.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it Is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certillcallon Is erroneous. A participant may
decide (he method and frequency by which it determines the eiigibility of Us principals. Each
participant may, but Is riot required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing' shall be construed to requlre estabtishment of a system of recordsin.order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and/^^
Exhibll F - C«rtircalion R^ardinp OobairnbiH. Suspension Contraciof Initials^---

And Other Respo'nsib.Uity Mauers "3/17/2022
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Informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a pajderil
.  person In the ordinary course of business deaDngs.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingiy enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended debarred Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this Iransactiori. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective prifriary participant certjftes to ihe best of Its knowledge and belief, that It and Its
principals: . ^ -u. '
ll'l. arenolpresenliydebarrdd, suspended, proposed for.debarment. declared Ineligible, or

■  voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of'or had
\  a civil judgment rendered against them for commlssloh of fraud or a criminal offense In
' corinecUon with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)

■ transaction or a contrecl under a public transactibn; violation of Federal or State anUtnjsl
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of

. records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
11.3. are riot presently Indicted for olheoyise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certificatiQn; and

11 A. have not within a three-year period preceding this applicallon/proposa! had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default

.12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to ariy of the statements In this ^ ...
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation io this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13 By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partjcipant. as
defined in 45 CFR-Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its prin&pa[s:'
131 are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for.debarmenl, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agenpy.
13 2 where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above,-suchprospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14 The prospective ibwer'tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
■  include this clause entitled •Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineliglbility. arid

Voluntary Exdusloh - Lower Tier Covered Transaction's." without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions end in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

•■^DMiiSlgiW by:

3/17/2022v '

Title; Executive Director

Exhibil F - Cdiricolion Rogtrdlng Oebormonl, Suspension Contrartof Initial!
A
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

"The Conlraclor Idenliffed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.1-1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will-require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nohdiscrlmination requirements, which may include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1"968 (42 U.S.C, Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this 'statute from discrimihaling, either in erfiploymenl practices.or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requireS'Certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 {42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohil>iled from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benerns; on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. v/hlch prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
-assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program^ or acltviiy;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C", Sections 16,81.1683,1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.Cv Sections 6106-07). ̂ ich prohibits discrimination on the
basis.of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employfrient discrimination;, ,

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U S Deparlmenl of Justice Regulations - Nondiscri'minalion; Equal Employment Op'porlunity; Policies
and Procedures);- Executive Order No. 13279 (equal proteclion of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations): Execuiive'Or'der No. 13559.-'which provide fundamental principles and policy-rnaking
crileriq for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Deparlmenl of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment.for Faith-Based i
Organizations); and Whislieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDA^) forlFlscal Yea'r 2013 (Pub. L. 112.-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the.Pilo.t Program for
Enhencerrient of Contract Employee Whlstleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle'blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate sel out below is a material represenlatlori of fact upon which reliance is'placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certiricalion or violation of .the certification.shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

•fI  t
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In Ihe event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or Slate administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department.of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General'Provisions.-to execute (tie following
certification:

. I. By signing and subrnittlng this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above. <

Contractor Name:

fcjr:

S/utCU. WaA3/17/2022

Date ^ l^meT'SY&'v^'wade
Title:

Executive Director

ExhitiiiG • \ ,
Contra^or Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not t>e permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for ihe.provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or througti State or local governments. t?y Federal granL contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not appjy to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
M^icare or Medicaid funds.'and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SI 000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section. 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Confractor's
representative as identified in Section 1. It and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to rhake reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

-OKU»Vn^by:

3/17/2022

Dale" Narne':'^^veTt*' wade
Title. Executive Director

Exhibii H - CenificsUon Regafding Contractoi Inhlah
,  (»

EnvifOftmenlal Tobacco Smoka 3/17/2022;
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACTfFFATAVCOMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and TransparencylAct (FFATA) requires prime a^rde«s of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and a'\rardedon or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associate I first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
■$25,000, the award Is su^ecl to the FFATA reporting (jquiremenls,.'as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaw 3rd and Executive GompensaUqn Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)-m ist report the following inforrnalion for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA rept rting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amourit of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts ICFD^ program numbef for grants
5. Program source'
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
.7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance^
9. Unique Identirier of the entity (OUNS «)
10. Total compensation arid names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual "gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually ar|d

10.2. Cpmpensation inforrhation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

• Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendme'rit Is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subawardrand Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Conlraclor!s representative, as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accounlabllity and Transparency.Act.

Contractor Name;

3/17/2022

Docu3lgn«d by.

Date
Title: Executive Director

OMiHHS'non)

Exhibit J -'Cohificbrion Ro^orUlhg Iho Federal Funding
Adcou'ntabtCty A/>d Tronspirency Act (FFATA) C^pQande

P^'e, 1 of 2

Contractor Inlllala

Date
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forma

As the donl/actor Identified in Section V3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate..

124026496

1. The'DUNS'numberforyourentity is:

2. In your" business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, gVa'nls.isub-grants, and/or cooperative agreernents; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual
•gross revenues from U.S. federal conlracis, subconlracls. loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
coop'eralive agreements? :

NO YES

If the-answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following: •».

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Inlemal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

.If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO.- please answer the following: ''

4. The names and cornpensalion of the five most highly compensated officers In.yoiif business or
organization are as follows:

, .Name:.,

Name:-.

Name:.

Name:.

Name:

Amouril:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

'Amount:

CU/OHHSfl 10713'

J •> Certification Regarding (he Federol Fur>ding
Aewvnlabillly And Troniparerxcy Act (FFATA) Comptiance.

Page 2 of 2
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OHMS Information SecurityKequirements

A. Definitions .

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" "means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure.
.. unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

situations where persons other than authorized users and for ah other than"
authorized purpose* have access or potential, access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard- to Protected Health

. Information." Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title'45,"Code of Federal Regulations.-

2. "Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce. "

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential bat_a' means all cdhfidenlial information
disclosed by one-party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable. Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of I^H • created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the .course of performing "contracted
servicets - of. which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
stale Or-federal law or regulation. This information includes, but Is not limited to
•Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (f^l). Social Security Numbers (S.SN),
Payment Card' Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End IJser" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, co.nlractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or deriva'liye data In accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. . IHIPAA'.rneans the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder

6.. "Incident" meahs^an act that potenlially violates an.explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized .access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or "denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the .processing or storage of data; and .changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characterislics y^thout the owner's knowledge, Ihslructipn, or
consent. Incidents'include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or. misplacement of hardcopy documents, and-misrouting.of "physical or electronjc

s(^
vs. lest updato 10/0^.18 Exhibit K . Contractor In&lais

DHHS ItVormaOoo
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DHHS information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
.access, use, disclosure, modification or de'struction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or .delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,

11- PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace "an individ.ual's identity, such as their name, social securjty number, personal
Informatiori as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blomelric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined .with other personal or identifying information which is linked

•or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's rnalden
name. etc. .

9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Service's.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definitioh of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45, C.F.R. §
160.103."

11. ■Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection'of Electronk;
Pf;ote.cled Health Information at 45 C.f^.R. Part 164, Subparl 0, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, -or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organizatlori thatjs accredited by
the American'National Sjandards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

,A. Business Use and Disclosure of Corifidenlial Information.

1. The Contractor must not lis.e, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,

.  Including bulmol, limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manher that would constitute a violation

■of the Privacy arid Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to .a
— 08

V5. UslupKJoto I(y09/18 ErfifbitK ContrtdOflnMab^
DHHS.Informolion

Security Rogtiremenls '3/17/2022
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that pHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Cohtraclor that DHHS has-agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and alx>ve those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI

■ pursuant to the .Privacy and Security Rule, the .Contractor must be Ixiund by such
.  . additional, restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards. ..

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End .
Uiser must only t>e used pursuant to the terrhs of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data" obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized represeritatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA '

.1.-Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated t>y an expert knowledgeable in cyber security ahd" that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.-

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only emplpy-email to transmit Confidential Data if
email Is encrypted and being ̂ sent to and being received by.email addresses of
persons authbfized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If, End User Is employing the Web to transmit Cpnfiderilial
Data. the.secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSI- encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, als.o known as File Sharing Sites. End User may hot use file
hosting services, such, as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to 'transmit
Cohfidenlia! Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S.'and when sent .to a named individual.

7. Laptops and .PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-pr.olecte.d.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential .Data via an open

■  ■ p-
VS.Losl update 1(V()9/18 ExhibllK Conln>clor InlUals:
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transimltting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If'End User is employing remo.te communication to
access or transmit- Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End .User's moljile deviC0(s) or laptop from which Information will l?e
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP fold"ers and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will,
be coded, for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).-

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSiTION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor "will, only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30" days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law of .permitted
underIhis Contract. To this end, the parties must: '

A. Reiention

1. The Contractor agrees It will not store, transfer of process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of

■ cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data arid Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to delect potential security events that can impact Slate of NH systerris-
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support .of proleclirig Department confidential iriformaliqn.

4. The Contractor agrees to. retain all electronic and hard copies of Confideritial Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Conndenlia! Data stored. In a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP'/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices fhust have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-

'  hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware. -and anti:malware utilities. The environment, as a

V^LflSlupdalo.1CV09/l8 - ' Exhibit K Contractor
pKHS lnro.niution

Security Roquiremenls 3/17/2022
Page 4 ore Do'o



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7E058C20-3085-4C6D-880i-A8A9AAF3048E

DocuSIgn Env^ope ID. FE4OFF15-d4B(M5O7-9C0C-323e2B0C'E382

New Hampshire Department of Healthand Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewajl protection.

6. The Cdntractor agrees' to and ensures its complete cooperation with the Slate's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of-any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B: Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing; emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described Iri NIST Special Publication BOO-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at

r; time of the data deslruclion. and will provide written certification to the Department
•  upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to

demonstrate data, has t>een properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory arid professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the. Stale and Contractor prior .to destruction.

•  2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of .this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

,3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of .data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. ,PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivaiive data or files, as follows:

:i. The Contractor" will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/oj stored in. the deliveryv
nof contracted services.

■  . 2. The Contractor will ■ maintain policies and' procedures to protect Department
confidential information Ihroilighout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure ■destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the.data"(I.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5 Loslup<l8le1(yO9/10 . EiWWlK ConUectofloiUals.^..,
, DHHS Intoonatlpn
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store'Department confidential Inforrnalion
where applicable.

4. The Contractor wll ensure proper. security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State or' NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will, provide regular security awareness and education for its End
.  Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for Slate of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

. program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minlmurri
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures,' systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any. applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access beirtg authorized.

8. If the Departrnent determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor ̂ 11 work with the Department at'its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to .monitor for any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabijities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually,-or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Stale of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or putside the* boundaries of the United States unless
.prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shalf
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, prorhptly'take measures to
prevent future breach and mirilmize ariy damage or loss resulting from the breach.-
The State shall recover from the .Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

— M

■
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor rhusl, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
' privacy and security of Confidential. Information, and must in-all other" respects

maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements .applicable to federal agencies, including.-
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a)i DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security "Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and -164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
information and as applicable under Slate" lavy.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the* confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it.. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less, than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to .maintain a documented breach, notification and Incident
response process, the Contractor wll notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
Stale's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, .computer.
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or Includes any State, of New
Hampshire .systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS .Data to
perform.lheir official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contr"act.

16. The" Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard thls.lnforrhatjpn at ail tirries.

c. ensure that laptops arid other'electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information" only if encrypted and being,
sent to and being received by email addresses of. persons authorized to
receive .such Information.

V5. Lasl update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Cortractof InJtiab —; ^
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e. limil disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

^  f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.),

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at. rest, or -when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained.' used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user cfedenlials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

.  This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify- the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provlded in
Section Vl; " ■ ,

The (Contractor musffurther handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach fMqtlflcatlon
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compfiance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information isinvoived in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the-risk level of Incidents
. and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and .

•OS
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5. Determine whether Breach notirication is required, and, if so, identify .appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
option's, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT . ' ..
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov ^ . ...

B. DHHS Security Officer. '
DHHSInformationSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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